STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
7/2/2019 9:40 A M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JAY CARMONA VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CLOSED SESSION AT 9:40AM

Closed session involving Storey County Board of County Commissioners. Call to
Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring
with:

a. County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey
County Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This




10.

meeting will begin at 9:40 immediately before the regular meeting of the Board of
County Commissioners.

CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for July 2, 2019.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Minutes for June 4, 2019.
CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of Business Licenses first readings:
A. SPECTROTEL, INC. - General / 1595 Peachtree Pkwy Ste 204-337 Cumming GA
B. CORONA STEEL, INC. Contractor / 3015 106th St. S Lakewood, WA
C.] VSHEEHAN GENERAL CONTRACTING - Contractor / 2640 Emily Street ~
Reno , NV
D. FUTURE FIRE PROTECTION, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 50238 ~ Sparks, NV
E. CRESTLINE CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3600 Crates Way Ste 100, The
Dallas OR
F. TANK CONNECTION, LLC. - Contractor / 3609 N 16th Street ~ Parsons KS
G. SHANGHAI RESTURANT - General / 1269 Baring Blvd ~ Sparks, NV
H. VC NV BED & BREAKFAST SUN MNT HOUSE - General / PO Box 162 VC, NV

II For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $ 966,620.62.
DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Amend the Agreement for Purchase of Real Property as approved by the Storey
County Board of Commissioners on June 18, 2019 specifically in the following areas:
» Amend last sentence of Section 6 to read “Said escrow shall close within 20
business days after the approval of this agreement by Divide and the County”.

¢ Amend first sentence of Section 11 to read “Following the close of escrow, Divide
shall have 60 days within which to remove its personal property, equipment and
trade fixtures from that portion of the premises currently used as a membership gym
business unless a lease is worked out between Storey County and Divide Fitness, Inc.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Approve and authorize the Chairman of the Storey County Board of Commissioners
to execute a contract between Storey County and PAW Professional Services, LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company for professional consulting services. Services
would be structured as an independent contractor with the managing member, Pat
Whitten, responsible for all expenses, scheduling, etc. Contractor shall provide
services at the request of the County Manager. Storey County shall pay for services
provided at an hourly rate of $165.00. (This item was continued from the June 18, 2019
Commission meeting.)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):

Noxious Weeds Presentation by, Sean Gephart with the Nevada Department of
Agriculture.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Possible approval of design fee proposals from Dube Architecture Group and Farr
West Engineering for architecture, HVAC, electrical, structural, and civil design
services relating to the proposed tenant improvement work at 800 South C Street,
Virginia City NV for the provision of county facilities to include Justice Court.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Contract to purchase the Virginia City Freight
Depot and adjacent properties in Virginia City, Nevada from David Pierce Powell and
Terry Ward for a cash purchase price of $695,000.00.

PUBLIC HEARING:

Review, establish and possibly approve the fair market value, at not than less the
appraised value, for the sale of the Crystal Bar (Visitor Center) located at 86 South C
Street, in Virginia City per guidelines established in NRS 244.281.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of modification and extension of Collective Bargaining Agreement Between
Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Employees Association AFSCME
Local 4041 Comstock Chapter (Union).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with Lumos & Associates up to
$85,000 to develop the Comstock and Highlands Area Water Master Plan, a master
plan and capital improvement plan for future water demand, supply, storage,
transmission, and distribution for central and south Storey County communities
including the Comstock, Highlands, and Mark Twain. The plan will also include the




17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Silver City water system in Lyon County under a cost-share agreement in which Lyon
County will contribute $13,000 toward the contract cost.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with CFA, Inc. for assistance in
professional planning and engineering services related to any planned unit
development and/ or large land subdivision applications or proposals in Storey
County. This contract will provide assistance to county planning staff with certain
civil and engineering review of such applications and projects, although there are no
such applications occurring or anticipated to occur at this time.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Possible approval of interlocal agreement with Carson City to have the Carson City
Public Guardian also act as the public guardian for Storey County at the rate of
$150.00 per hour.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of refund of excess funds paid for community
development permits in the amount of $71,266.97.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution No. 19-547, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed
by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for
the 2019-2020 fiscal year, and amending prior year action by resolution for appointed
Storey County officials for the 2018-2019 fiscal period by adding and assigning salary
grade to Assistant Comptroller.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Possible approval of Resolution N0.19-546, a resolution setting grade and salary range
of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 474.470 for appointed Storey
County Fire District officials.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of 2nd reading for On-Sale Liquor License Virginia City Joe's, 5N CSt.,
Virginia City, NV 89440 - Applicant is Joe France.

RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS




26.

27.

28.

29.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of 2nd reading for General Business License Virginia City Joe's, 5 N CSt.,
Virginia City, NV 89440 - Applicant is Joe France.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Notice to cancel the July 16, 2019, meeting of the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, with acknowledgement that the meeting may occur if certain urgent
matters necessitate this meeting, and under such circumstances the meeting will be
posted as usual in accordance with NRS.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

2019-028 Consideration and Possible Action of Grant of Easement to NV Energy for
utilities within portions of the M Street and Washington Street Rights-of-Way,
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Business Licenses second readings:

A. LEEWENS CORPORATION - Contractor / PO Box 2549 ~ Kirkland, WA

B. INNOVATIVE EQUIPMENT - General / 3555 Airway Dr Ste 305 ~ Reno, NV

C. ZAHLER ENTERPRISES - Contractor / 1075 Country Estate Cr ~ Reno, NV

D. FANUC AMERICA CORPORATION - General / 3900 W Hamlin ~ Rochester
Hills, MI

E. VARIETY BUILDING SYSTEMS. - Contractor /7690 Diamond Vista Ct ~Reno, NV
F. BUSYBEE KITCHEN, LLC - General / 4845 Osage Dr ~ Stagecoach, NV

G. DRIPS COFFEE TRUCK - General/ 385 Freeport #21 ~ Sparks, NV

H. BECKHOFF AUTOMATION, LLC - General / 13130 Dakota Ave ~ Savage, MN

I. TEG STAFFING DBA EASTRIDGE WORKFORCE - General / 2355 Northside Dr ~
San Diego, CA

J. HELLERMANNTYTON CORPORATION - General / 7930 N Faulkner Rd ~
Milwaukee, WI

K. FERNLEY CLEAN UP LLC - General / 36 Primton Way ~ Fernley, NV

L. NINGBO XUSHENG AUTO TECH DBA NINBO N.A. - General/ 555 Bryant St ~
Palo Alto, CA

M. KAWCAK MASONRY, INC. Contractor / 7955 Sugar Pine Ct #150 ~ Reno, NV
N. ERG AEROSPACE CORPORATION - General / 964 Stanford Ave ~ Oakland, CA
O. F3 & ASSOCIATES, INC. - General / 701 E H St ~ Benicia, CA

P. DA BUILDERS, LLC - Contractor / 1770 Scott Valley Rd ~ Reno, NV

Q. ASPEN EARTHWORKS - Contractor/ PO Box 33897 ~ Reno, NV

R. WORK RIGHT NW - General/ 1760 Down River Rd ~ Woodland, WA

S. WESTERN ASSOCIATES- General / 5255 E Winnemucca Blvd #109 ~
Winnemucca, NV

T. NATIONAL LANSCAPE -Contractor / PO Box 51166 ~ Sparks, NV




30.

31.

32.

U. NATIONAL INSTRUMENTS CORP. -General / 11500 N Mopac Expwy ~ Austin,
TX

V. DAIFUKU AMERICA CORP. -General /30100 Cabot Dr ~ Novi, MI

W. PESTIGE BUILDING MAINTENANCE OF NV- General/ 3983 S McCarran Blvd ~
Reno, NV

X.PMT (USA), LLC -General / 2015 Ionosphere St #203 ~ Longmont, CO

Y. PARAGON CLEANING SVR SBA SUNSHINE CLEANING -General /840
Pyramid~Sparks, NV

Z. VECOPLAN, LLC- General / 5708 Uwharrie Rd ~ Archdale, NC

A. A. RENOWN HEALTH URGENT CARE - General / 1155 Mill St ~ Reno, NV

B. B. RENOWN REG MED CNTR DBA RENOWN HOSPICE CARE - General / 1155
Mill St ~ Reno, NV

C. C. KISTLER INSTRUMENT CORPORATION - General / 30280 Hudson Dr ~
Novi, MI

D.D. CLINT JENSEN CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 1390 Rice Rd ~ Fallon,
NV

E.E. C. M. STEEL, INC. - General / PO Box 36940 ~ Rock Hill, SC

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA

CLOSED SESSION

Closed session involving Storey County Fire Protection District Commissioners. Call
to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with:

a. Fire Protection District management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227. This meeting will
begin immediately after the regular meeting of the Board of County Commissioners.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from




discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 6/27/2019; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By ﬁ[lﬂdaﬁfaﬁ 2N
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/02/19 (9:40 am.) Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Closed session involving Storey County Board of County Commissioners. Call to Order
Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with:
a. County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This meeting will begin at
9:40 immediately before the regular meeting of the Board of County Commissioners.

2. Recommended motion. No action
3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2016-19 bargaining agreements between the
Storey County Commissioners and the Storey County Employees’ Association, the bargaining

agreement is proposed to be modified as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided at closed session meeting.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

[ S— S

Agenda Item No. |




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting‘ bd;n‘te: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of the Minutes for June 4, 2019.

Recommended motion: Approve the minutes for June 4, 2019.

Prepared by: V Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 847-0969

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached for review.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
JUNE 4, 2019 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JAY CARMONA VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner Carmona, County Manager
Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Sheriff
Gerald Antinoro, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin
Osborne, Fire Chief Jeff Nevin, Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin, Outside Counsel Bob
Morris, VCTC Director Deny Dotson

1. CALL TO ORDER MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Chairman McBride called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 4, 2019.
County Manager Whitten requested continuance of item 20 to the next meeting.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I move to approve the Agenda for June 4, 2019, continuing item 20, to the next meeting,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3

4. CONSENT AGENDA

I Approval of memorandum of Understanding between the Carson City Department of Alternative
Sentencing (CCDAS) and Storey County. Specifically, CCDAS may provide law enforcement training
to Court Marshals, Bailiffs and other staff assigned to security within Storey County and Storey
County will provide CCDAS training supplies for Storey County staff attending training.

1




Il For possible action, approval to amendment 1 to the ongoing Storey County Contract with
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Aging and Disability Services Division. The
amendment revises Attachment B - Service Billing, which currently reflects services and rates and
will change to reflect and indicate the current rate on the website.

Il For possible action, approval of business license first readings (continued from May 21, 2019):
A. GREAT STAFFING OF AMERICA - General / 440 USA Pkwy ~ McCarran, NV

B. ENVIROPROS, LLC - General / 2273 S Vista Ave #3C ~ Bloomington, CA

C. DOUBLE D ELECTRICAL/INSTALLATION - Contractor / 1321 Earl Dr ~SLC, UT

D. TECHNICAL INSPECTION AGENCY - General / 5940 S Rainbow Blvd ~ Las Vegas, NV
E. TAURUS FABRICATION, INC. - General / 5421 Kietzke Ln #100 ~ Reno, NV

F. SEEGRID CORPORATION - General / 216 RIDC Parkwest Dr ~ Pittsburgh, PA

G. RED CEDAR STEEL SOUTHWEST - Contractor / 1540 W Hatcher Rd ~ Phoenix, AZ

H. CUPERTINO ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 1132 N 7th St ~ San Jose, CA

I. MAXGEN ENERGY SERVICES CORP - Contractor / 1690 Scenic Ave ~ Costa Mesa, CA

J. COVESTRO, LLC - General / 1 Covestro Cir ~ Pittsburgh, PA

K. THE INSTALLATION GROUP, LLC - Contractor / 1201 N Raddant Rd ~ Batavia, IL

L. FOREVER AWNINGS, LLC - Contractor / 860 Twin Pines Rd ~ Reno, NV

M. OPHIR RIDGE, LLC - Contractor / 350 N Stewart ~ Virginia City, NV

N. JDC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 998 Yellowhammer Ct ~ Sparks, NV

O. PIONEER ELECTRIC, LTD. - Contractor / 1790 Carson Ave ~ Sparks, NV

P. FACET & CO. - General / 80 South C St ~ Virginia City, NV

Q. CLIMATEC, LLC - General / 2851 W Kathleen Rd ~ Phoenix, AZ

R. THE SUPERIOR PEI GROUP, LLC - Contractor / 740 Waterman Ave ~ Columbus, OH

IV For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $1,784,563.09.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I move to approve the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Deny Dotson, VCTC Director:
e An additional $80,000 has been budgeted for marketing this fiscal year. This will include on-
line radio, TV spots on NPR and Tahoe TV, as well as on-line digital presence.
o Two more videos are being made, focusing on performing arts and culture.
e The recent play at Pipers was extremely well done.
o Follow up on the Crystal Bar sale - final estimates are being obtained for the new building.
This item should be on the next agenda.
e Street Vibrations Spring Run is this weekend. Women with Wheelz will be held the following
weekend. 4th of July is only a few weeks off. Donations for fireworks are still a little behind.

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Planning Director:
e Reviewed several bills that were before the Legislature. Including diesel tax - which passed,

with a $200,000 possible impact for Storey County to be used for road projects; public record
2




requests fines; domestic wells; sales tax increase allowances; water systems study;
independent contractors; bail bill; changes to peace officers bill of rights; collective bargaining;
among others.

o Thank you to the Mary Walker Group for their representation at the Legislature.

6. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
None

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with
the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to $30,000 to continue voluntary and limited
monitoring of groundwater levels and quality, aquifer conditions, and other geotechnical matters in
the Virginia City Highlands, Highlands Ranches, and Virginia Ranches are of Storey County during
the 2019-20 fiscal year. This is a continuation of the prior year contract for this purpose.

Austin Osborne said this is part of the Master Plan recommended study of the Highlands for
monitoring underground water.

David Smith with the USGS presented a status update of the survey. Most questions were about the
impact of the weather this year. Mr. Smith reviewed averages over 30 years - this year to date has
been a little above normal precipitation. He discussed the number of wells in the study and
measurements taken to date. Volunteers are still being accepted to have wells monitored.

A stakeholder update meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 5%, at the Highlands Fire
Station.

USGS is requesting $25,700 for 2020, with a 50/50 match from USGS Federal Matching Funds.

All information is available on-line.
Commissioner Carmona: What is the specific area where wells have decreased?

Mr. Smith explained some of the bigger decreases are near Hart Road and some on/near Grizzly
Road. Water levels have remained mostly flat through time in the areas of the 10’s and 40’s.
Decreases seem to be more in the 1 acre parcels.

Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County resident complimented USGS and Mr. Smith on what they are doing,

and thanked the Commission and County for funding the survey.

Motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I, Lance Gilman, authorize the County Manger to
approve a contract with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) up to $30,000 to continue the
voluntary and limited monitoring of groundwater levels and quality, aquifer conditions, and other
geotechnical matters in the Virginia City Highlands, Highlands Ranches, and Virginia Ranches area
of Storey County during the 2019-20 fiscal year, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)




8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2019-2020 funds.

Carol Ingalls, Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL), representative explained there is an
increase this year.

Wayne Carlson, Executive Director, explained the increase is due to large property losses around the
world in the last couple of years putting pressure on the market. The increase is approximately 5%.
Property values in this area have increased about 6% - and there was an increase in payroll and
number of vehicles.

Ms. Ingalls congratulated the HR Department for taking advantage of training offered through the
HR Program. Ms. Ingalls reviewed the different programs utilized by the County.

Chairman McBride asked what this type of policy and coverages would cost if the County did not
participate in POOL.

Mr. Carlson: As example, flood and earthquake coverages have a $5,000 deductible with the POOL.
In the commercial market it would be 10% of the value of the building and the contents damaged - a
big difference. Mr. Carlson reviewed a list of benefits provided - most not provided by the
commercial market.

Mr. Whitten commented he has served on the Human Resources Oversight Committee. Upon
retirement, Austin Osborne will take that seat on the Committee.

Ms. Ingalls reviewed the program and commented how things change when it's a competitive
market.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I move to approve the renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool
(POOL) and approve payment from fiscal 2019-2020 funds, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager and the District Attorney’s
Office to seek outside special counsel in regards to due diligence being conducted on the proposal to
change the governance structure of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District.

Vice-Chairman Gilman recused himself from the item as he holds a pecuniary interest in the TRI
Center.

Mr. Whitten explained this item is for authorization to consult outside counsel regarding the request
of the TRI GID to change the form of governance from elected by residents to the Board of County
Commissioners sitting as trustees of the GID. There have been issues retaining elected residents. A
previously approved assessment of the GID is being processed. The Board has previously approved
an audit of the fiscal stability of the GID. The County auditor has confirmed that the GID would be

4




treated as a component unit. The County needs advice on what a “component unit” means - whether
there is liability to the County - is it included or still a “stand alone”. The intent is to contact the
County’s bond counsel, Kendra Follett of Sherman & Howard, in order to locate someone who can
provide advice.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident said he is encouraged about this process. What department would
over-see County services and fees - would employees be added to the payroll?

Mr. Whitten said it is a possibility. If this happens, it would be approved by the Board and would be
on a compensated basis. This could be for legal, fiscal, or human resource services - it would be up
to each of those departments. Public Works is stretched thin right now. There have been talks about
having the GID go on the SCADA system for reading meters - the same as Public Works.

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to approve and authorize the County Manager and the District
Attorney’s Office to seek outside special counsel in regards to due diligence being conducted on the
proposal to change the governance structure of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center General
Improvement District, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Carmona, Seconded by:
Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Determine and prioritize options to comply with District
Court order to vacate all Justice Court activities from the District Courtroom, Chambers, Jury Room
and Clerk's Office within 180 days of their issuance of said order.

Mr. Whitten said meetings are held every Monday to discuss status. Focus is on the Divide building.
A meeting was held regarding allocation of space, possible sky light installation, among other items.

Public Comment: None

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: To appoint Tyler Jourdonnais to confirm his May 31, 2018
appraisal of real property and improvements located at 800 S C Street in Virginia City, NV. That
appraisal valued the property at $1,355,000 as contrasted to the appraisal submitted by Tony Wren
which valued the property at $1,300,000. If Mr. Jourdonnais confirms the higher value, staff intends
to recommend averaging the 2 appraisals to establish our offering price. The cost of Mr. Jourdonnais'
additional service is not currently known. If the County purchases the property, it will be for the
purpose of utilizing a portion of the property as the site of a Justice Court, Justice Court offices, IT
office and 911 Communication/Dispatch Center.

Mr. Whitten explained the Fain’s approached the County with an offer to sell their building. In 2018,
the Fain’s obtained an appraisal of the property from Tyler Jourdonnais. The County received an
appraisal from Tony Wren which came in slightly less. Pursuant to counsel, there is no stale date on
an appraisal when the County is purchasing. Mr. Jourdonnais must be appointed by the Board and
Mr. Jourdonnais must confirm his appraisal in order to be accepted by the County.

Mr. Whitten said when the County buys property, regardless of who it's from, typically the
transaction is made as fair, reasonable, and favorable to the seller as we can. It does not matter who
the seller is, this is what has been done before. This property is unique as it offers the County an

5




existing building. Currently, the “ballpark” figure is $1.8, maybe up to $2 million, for acquisition and
improvements. Building at a new location would be over $4 million.

Vice Chairman Gilman likes the direction this is taking.

Chairman McBride appreciates this would be coming in lower than what it would take to build at the
jail location.

Public Comment:
Steve Ayer, Storey County resident: Commented about the County buying-up properties, taking
commercial properties out of the tax base and suggested the long-term should be looked at.

Chairman McBride said this has been taken into consideration. It would take a long time in tax
revenue from this property to make up the $2 million additional revenue to build a new complex.
Other County properties can go back (sold) to public hands whenever the County tenant vacates.

Mr. Whitten commented that (County) properties are being sold.

Sam Toll, Gold Hill resident: Asked for clarification of this item - it is simply to allow this appraiser
to submit the evaluation he had done in the past. He understands typically an evaluation more than
90 days is not considered “up to date” and is encouraged that a second is being obtained.

Mr. Whitten: And, to confirm his valuation of the property as of May 31%t last year.

Motion: I, Lance Gilman, move to appoint Tyler Jourdonnais to confirm his May 31, 2018 appraisal
of real property and improvements located at 800 S C Street in Virginia City, Nevada, in the amount
of $1,355,000, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner
Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of an ordinance amending Storey County
Code by adding section 10.20.065 prohibiting parking a motor vehicle in an electric vehicle charging
station and adding a provision for a fine for unlawful parking in an electric vehicle charging zone,
and providing for other properly related matters.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris read the title: an ordinance amending Storey County Code by adding
section 10.20.065 prohibiting parking a motor vehicle in an electric vehicle charging station and
adding a provision for a fine for unlawful parking in an electric vehicle charging zone, and providing
for other properly related matters.

Mr. Morris explained NRS gives the County Commission authority to regulate parking in public
parking lots. The original parking ordinance is 40 years old. Storey County Codes need to be kept
updated due to changes in society.

Chairman McBride commented he does not like more rules and regulations, but the County provides
three spaces for electric vehicles and when gas vehicles park there, the electric cars can’t charge.




Public Comment:
Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Who pays for the chargers?

Mr. Whitten: The chargers were provided by Tesla - two are Tesla only and one universal. These are
destination chargers, taking about four hours. A super-charger would take 20 minutes. Having the
destination chargers gives plenty of time (for visitors) to explore Virginia City. The County pays for
the electricity and can apply for reduced rates through NV Energy.

Ms. Barde asked why the taxpayers pay for “gas”.

Mr. Whitten explained more is generated in sales tax than the cost of power for the vehicles. For the
record, he has never parked his electric vehicle at these chargers.

Sam Toll: Believes much more would be generated from tickets for those illegally parked at the
chargers than is paid for power at the chargers.

Motion: I move to approve first reading of an ordinance 19-xxx, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Transition update from County Manager Pat Whitten and
County Manager Designee Austin Osborne.

Mr. Osborne reviewed items that he feels should be addressed in the future. This includes creation of
a County-wide Strategic Plan, as well as:

e A BOC joint session with the Planning Commission, and perhaps the VCTC and the

School Board;
e Major projects would include:
o Enacting the recently passed Diesel Tax if the Board wishes;

TRI Retail Center;
Staff transitioning - including the Planning Department;
Zip code name change for TRI;
Brothel over-lay zone and Title 17 Ordinance;
Waste Management Franchise negotiations;
Pipers Opera House staffing/ organizational structure;
Lands Bill interpretations;
Marlette Water System/ water study;
Complete CBA bargaining;
Sheriff’s Office bargaining for next year.

O 06 000 0O 0O 0 0 0

Mr. Osborne reviewed projects the Planning Department would be taking the lead on.

Mr. Whitten asked for input from the Commission regarding a proposal for him to come back (after
retirement) to consult on certain on-going items (such as the Justice Court project and Tesla
negotiations). Mr. Whitten reviewed projects that are currently being worked on and the potential
list of projects he would continue to work on. This would enable a seamless transition.




14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Contract Agreement with Ecology and
Environment Inc. in the amount of $28,700 to update the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Ms. Nevin said the County is required to update its Hazard Mitigation Plan every five years. The
purpose of the plan is to reduce loss of life and property due to natural disasters, and to enable
mitigation measures. Funds are included in the 2019-20 budget for this update. After approval, work
will begin immediately - the plan is due to FEMA early 2020.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: I move to approve a Contract Agreement with Ecology and Environment Inc. in the amount
of $28,700 to update the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan, and provide authorization for the
County Manager, or his designee, to sign all associated documents, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AD THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of 2nd reading for the On-Sale Liquor License,
Off-Sale Liquor License & Cabaret License for Union Brewery Virginia City LLC. Place of business:
63 N C St, Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Lisa Matheny.

Sheriff Antinoro said there is nothing from the investigative process that would prohibit this license.
Approval is recommended.

Chairman McBride and Vice-Chairman Gilman disclosed that they hold licenses on C Street as well.
This does not affect the motion and vote.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Lance Gilman, Commissioner, move to approve 2nd reading for the On-Sale Liquor
License, Off-Sale Liquor License & Cabaret License for Union Brewery Virginia City LLC. Place of
business: 63 N C St, Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Lisa Matheny, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of 2nd reading for the general business license
for Union Brewery Virginia City LLC. Place of business: 63 N C St, Virginia City, NV 89440.
Applicant is Lisa Matheny.

Sheriff Antinoro again stated there is nothing to prohibit approval of this general business license.

Public Comment:
Sam Toll asked if this business is open and conducting business.

8




Sheriff Antinoro said the business was granted a temporary (license) since the first reading.

Motion: [ make a motion to approve the second reading for the general business license for Union
Brewery Virginia City LLC. Place of business: 63 N C St, Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Lisa
Matheny, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner
Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: 2019-021 Consideration and possible Grant of ROW
Easement to Zayo Group LLC, an easement for an underground optic cable line through Storey
County ROW Parcel 2009-17 of Record of Survey Document No. 111647 for Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center LLC recorded in the Office of the Storey County Recorder on August 5, 2009, located in
McCarran area of Storey County, Nevada.

Kathy Canfield reviewed this request from the Zayo Group for an underground fiber-optic line
through County property.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Lance Gilman, move to approve a grant
of right-of-way easement 2019-021 to Zayo Group LLC, for an underground optic cable line through
Storey County ROW Parcel 2009-17 of Record of Survey Document No. 111647 for Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center LLC recorded in the Office of the Storey County Recorder on August 5, 2009,
located in McCarran area of Storey County, Nevada, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Business Licenses Second Readings
(continued from May 21, 2019):

A. CAMCO NORTH - General / PO Box 400518 ~ Las Vegas NV 89119

B. QUALITY FIRST HOME IMPROVEMENT .- Contractors /6545 Sunrise Blvd #202 ~Citrus Heights,
CA

C. RAM MECHANICAL INC. - Contractor / 3506 Moore Rd ~ Ceres, CA

D. M.C. DEAN, INC. - Contractor/ 1765 Greensboro Station Place ~ Tysons, VA

E. DESERT STAR MHS - Contractor/ 5051 N Virginia St #27 ~ Reno, NV

F. TRI SAGE CONSULTING -General / 5418 Longley Lane Ste A ~ Reno, NV

G. MEXIKUE TACOS TIJUANA General / 5252 Side hill Drive ~ Sun Valley, NV

H. SMITH PLUMBING- Contractor/ 533 7th Street ~ Sparks, NV

I. THERMO SYSTEMS, LLC -General/ 84 Twin Rivers Dr. ~ E Windsor NJ

J. BROWN HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING LTD -Contractor/ 7871 Hwy 50 East Carson City,
NV

K. TAYLOR HOME INSPECTIONS - General/ 10365 Goldmine Drive ~ Reno, NV

Continued to June 18, 2019

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)




Laurie Rodriguez read an edited version of a proposal she presented to the NDOT Board on May
13th. It is important to the County as the County would be involved:

“The addition of a third lane to the I-80 has been a topic of discussion but the real issue is how to
move people to TRIC. I would like to propose a monorail. Since we are targeting one specific
location this would make perfect sense. Elevated trains using the latest technology, are non-
polluting, fast, and quiet. In some areas they are being built on the sides of, and the centers of,
existing freeways. Passenger cabs can be added as the demand grows and the trains are proving to
be profitable. 1see this project in three phases - the first being from Sparks to TRIC, the second
would be from Fernley to TRIC, the third would be from Fallon to Fernley. Stations with adequate
parking would be needed, as airports have now, and revised bus routes to accommodate riders
would be nice. The present employers of TRIC already have 94 shuttles in operation. I envision these
vans to be centered at the TRIC station to ferry people to their work places. This would reduce the
operating cost for employers encouraging them to keep the vanpools. It is in the approximate $400
million budget projected for the third-leg build, I think a miniscule amount could be allocated for a
feasibility study of a monorail. Many of the major costs of building these systems is literally moving
mountains. We don’t have that problem with the corridor. Also, construction companies should
have verifiable experience building elevated trains as a requirement to submit a bid. We need to
make changes starting now, because if we don’t start now - then when? It is so easy to fall back on
the “same ole - same ole”. If countries all over the world are building these, so can we. I am
speaking about this idea to nine different County Commission and City Council meetings in the area
to see if there is interest for this endeavor. We have nothing to lose by researching this mode of travel
and everything to gain. My original presentation to NDOT also included high-speed train proposals
for the I-11 and the I-15 - but today I am speaking specifically to the I-80. If you and your
constituents would support a feasibility study for the monorail, I encourage you to go to the NDOT
Board meetings and contact the Director’s Office, the Governor’s Office, and Kate Wilson in the
Lieutenant Governor’s Office. We can make a difference if we let our representatives know that we
would like to see this happen. We need to be determined, patient, and involved from the start - only
then can we see this project become what we want it to be for now and in the future.”

Chairman McBride asked Ms. Rodriguez if there were any numbers indicating how long it takes a
transportation system to pay for itself.

Ms. Rodriguez answered no, as we don’t have the population that other places have. The one in Las
Vegas took a while, but it is paying for itself now.

Sam Toll: He is encouraged by the comments made by Ms. Rodriguez - forward thinking projects
regarding transportation. He is reluctant for Storey County taxpayers to foot any more than is
necessary in this (project) since very few Storey County residents would enjoy (use) it. Storey County
businesses would benefit greatly.

Mr. Toll said he is disappointed that his agenda item request to have public comment at the
beginning of the meeting, as well as the end, was denied. This is a message to the public that they
come last and it discourages public input. Mr. Toll requested Commissioner Carmona to provide
opportunity to the public that was not had with previous Boards.

Mr. Toll noted that Governor Sisolak will have opportunity to sign a bill that would enhance and
“put teeth in” the public request law and prevent stone-walling. He has 8 public requests in at the

10




District Attorney’s office. Commitments have not been kept in filling these requests. He has offered
to help in fulfilling the requests.

It would be great to move Public Comment to the beginning and the end of the meeting.
22. ADJOURNMENT of all active and recessed Boards on the Agenda
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 11:53 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

By:__/(kAd) b)) \
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Tréasurer

11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07-02-19 Estimate of time required: 0- 5
Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motiom: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Sarah Dillon
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4, Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally approved

on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next Commissioner’s
meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

X Department Name: Community Development
Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. (o T



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess ° Licenging

P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 - Fax (775) 847-0935 *sdillon@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office July 2,2019
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Sarah Dillon
Please add the following item(s) to the July 2, 2019 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. SPECTROTEL, INC. - General / 1595 Peachtree Pkwy Ste 204-337 Cumming GA

B. CORONA STEEL, INC. Contractor / 3015 106" St. S Lakewood, WA

C.J VSHEEHAN GENERAL CONTRACTING - Contractor / 2640 Emily Street ~ Reno , NV
D. FUTURE FIRE PROTECTION, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 50238 ~ Sparks, NV

E. CRESTLINE CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3600 Crates Way Ste 100, The Dallas OR

F. TANK CONNECTION, LLC. - Contractor / 3609 N 16" Street ~ Parsons KS

G. SHANGHAI RESTURANT - General / 1269 Baring Blvd ~ Sparks, NV

H. VC NV BED & BREAKFAST SUN MNT HOUSE — General / PO Box 162 VC, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetin~g\d\é‘te: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

2.

3.

7.

Title: For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $ 966,620.62.

Recommended motion: Approve claims as part of the consent agenda.

Prepared by: V Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 847-0969

Staff Summary: Claims are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:
[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

bIL




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00817 - 2019-06-14 PR Payment cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount. Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
300007 USAA 529 College Savings Plans 06/14/2019 EFT 0.00 50.00 10027
300003 AFLAC 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 1,248.42 96146
300008 AFSCME Union 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 557.04 96147
405519 Cigna Health and Life Insurance Conr 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 119,750.83 96148
**Void** 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 0.00 96149
300001 Colonijal Life & Accident 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 111.69 96150
404704 DVM INSURANCE AGENCY 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 111.49 96151
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 1,389.18 96152
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 732.36 96153
300011 Nevada State Treasurer 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 4.00 96154
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEN 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 46.66 96155
300010 State Collection & Disbursement Un 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 197.70 96156
300006 Storey Co Fire Fighters Assoc 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 1,300.000 96157
404639 VOYA RETIREMENT INS 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 8,296.50 96158
300005 Washington National Ins 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 518.99 96159
300002 Western Insurance Specialties 06/14/2019 Regular 0.00 363.34 96160
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 30 14 0.00 134,628.20
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 1 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 1 1 0.00 50.00:
31 16 0.00 134,678.20

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commiissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date



Ch;ck Register Packet: APPKT00817-2019-06-14 PR Payment cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 6/2019 134,678.20

134,678.20




I jo 1 abey

LLS9T'TT LL°S9TTT 000 000 000 i.hn.moN.ﬂ
LL'S9T'TT LL°S9T'TT ___boo 000 000 ,Tl.R.mwN.S
LL'S9T'TT
LL°89T'TT LLS9T'TT 000 000 000 LL'S9TTT
LL°S9T'TT LL7S9T'TT 000 00°0 00°0 LL°S9T'TT
junouiy isia
uawied 19N unodsia xey Suiddiys unowy

610Z/¥1/90 - 610Z/+1/90 abuey ajeq waswAied
- abuey aq3eq bunsod

awepN JopudA Ag
Hoday A10)SIH JOpuUdA

;oL uoday (1) isiopuap
'sJ0puadp Ajuno) Aai0ls - 10 210l (%) :ssopudp
sadueinsut 000-90S62-100 LLS9T'TT
6102/v1/9 €v70000L4Q 610Z/v1/9
AWEN UnoddYy JSqUInNN JuncldYy unowy
ajeq uawiey JaquinN jJuawied 6601 3jeq 150d

000

dd

000 SUONNQLIVO) YSH
suonNqIIuo) YSH 6Z8%000ANI

2104 Jeqwa “ueg wmdo - YZrSoY
SI0pudA Ayuno) A3103S - 10 195 JOPUDA
uonduasag way|

Jaquiny ajqgeAed

sHun
uondirsaq




Packet: PRPKT00328 - 2019-06-14 Payroll cw
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Payroll Check Register
Report Summary

Pay Period: 5/27/2019-6/9/2019

Type Count Amount
Regular Checks 10 7,228.12
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 173 346,185.32
Total 183 353,413.44

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date




Vendor Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
Silver State Mobile Home Park

Payment Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Check Register

Packet: APPKT00821 - 2019-06-14 Spcl Ck V&T cw

Payment Date Payment Type
06/14/2019 Regular
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment
Count Count Discount
1 1 0.00
0 0 0.00
0 0 0.00
0 0 0.00
S R
1 1 0.00

By Check Number

Discount Amount Payment Amount Number

0.00 6,000.00 96161

Payment
6,000.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.09

6,000.00

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date

Commissioner




Check Register Packet: APPKT00821-2019-06-14 Spcl Ck V&T cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 6/2019 6,000.00

6,000.00




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00852 - 2019-06-21 Payments cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

10050 ADVANCED DATA SYSTEMS INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 3,446.00 96162

101589 AIRGAS NCN INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 151.27 96163

400481 ALLISON, MACKENZIE, LTD 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 930.00 96164

403795 ALPINE LOCK INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 28.75 96165

100135 ALSCO INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 320.05 96166

404935 AMES CONSTRUCTION 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 12,459.25 96167

403651 ARC HEALTH AND WELLNESS 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 6,403.18 96168

405268 ARGENTUM PARTNERS, LTD 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 10,000.00 96169

403619 AT&T TELECONFERENCE SERVI 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 9:42 96170

405555 Auto Warehouse 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 484.56 96171

100285 AVS DEVELOPMENT LTD 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 250.00: 96172

405380 Barkdull-Spencer, Elaine 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 6,505.81 96173

101605 BERRY ENTERPRISES 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 3,915.90 96174

405566 Brandon, Ryan 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 500.00 96175

403671 BURRELL, SCOTT LEWIS 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 229.50 96176

100476 BURTON'S FIRE INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 1,'727.47 96177

405531 Carson City Culture and Tourism Aul 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 466.97 96178

405579 Carter, Brett M. 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 408.45 96179

99720 CASELLE INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 202.00. 96180

100597 CASHMAN EQUIPMENT CORP 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 190.00 96181

403268 CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 2,478.88 96182

403635 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 211.53 96183

404991 CENTRAL SIERRA CONST INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 18,300.00 96184

403775 CHARM-TEX 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 145.80 96185

405235 CHARTWELL STAFFING SERV 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 1,573.20 96186

405134 CMC TIRE INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 1,789.96 96187

403822 COLLECTION SERVICE OF NEV 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 13.57 96188

99708 COLLINS CONSTRUCTION 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 1,400.00 96183

403327 COMBS, GRANT L 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 6,516.78 96190

405573 Combs, Stacy 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 100.00° 96191

100655 COMMUNITY CHEST INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 175.00 96192

403990 COMSTOCK CEMETERY FOUNDAT  06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 240.00 96193

403887 COMSTOCK GOLD MILL LLC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 144.00 96194

405452 Dunseath, lames Scoftt 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 468.00. 96195

404176 DX-10 INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 792.00 96196

404547 ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 8,073.43 96197

404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 576.40 96198 1
101485 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 3,071.48 96199 |
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 436.94. 96200 |
404640 GLADDING, EDWARD A. 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 6,960.00. 96201 ;
404896 GOLDEN GATE/SET PETROLEUM 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 1,803.64 96202 ‘
101899 GRAINGER 06/21/2019 Reguiar 0.00 393.44 96203 ‘
100856 GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 959.00 96204 |
404778 HAT, LTD 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 3,732.96 96205

102983 HD SUPPLY FACIL MAINT LTD 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 937.47 96206

403040 HENRY SCHEIN 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 6,589.50 96207

100826 HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL F 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 348.00 96208

405302 Institute for Enviornmental Health It 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 359.33 96209

404328 INTERCEPT INC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 424.00 96210

100885 IRON MOUNTAIN INFO MGT IN 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 296.55 96211

403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 1,330.33 96212

404771 ITS MY COMMUNITY STORE 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 48.86 96213

103317 JBP LLC 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 653.64 96214

405576 lourdonnais, Tyler Malcolm 06/21/2019 Regular 0.00 500.00 96215




Check Register

Vendor Number
405569
405184
404105
404102
404102
405580
404363
405077
404136
405307
404538
100471
403426
404207
101228
101343
403317
101335
101026
403632
101209
403693
402926
103220
404118
405127
404870
404556
403895
101435
103032
103221
404929
404797
405458
402937
404863
405095
405578
10026
200395
103241
405320
101761
405081
404187
102462
101632
403957
404195
403234
101658
405572
102441
101745
405475
405425
403892
405575
404675
405244

Vendor Name

Kotrba, Colleen

LAS VEGAS TACTICAL LLC.
LEND A CHEK

LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC
LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC
Loveberg, Robert G.

MA LABORATORIES INC
MACKAY MANSION
MCELLISTREM, JOSEPH E
Mckechnie, Marla J.

MELVYN GREEN & ASSOC INC
MOUND HOUSE TRUE VALUE
MUNICIPAL CODE CORP
NALS OF NEVADA

NEV ADMIN BLDG & GROUNDS
NEV DEPT HUMAN RESOURCES
NEV DEPT PUBLIC SAFETY
NEV DEPT TAXATION

NEV LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL
NEVADA BLUE LTD (RNO)

NEVADA DISTRICT ATTORNEYS ASSC

NORTHERN NV BUSINESS WKLY
OFFSITE DATA DEPOT, LLC

ON THE SIDE GRAPHICS & S|
OPTUMINSIGHT INC

O'REILLY AUTO-ENTERPRISES LLC
OSBORNE, JOAN

OUTFRONT MEDIA LLC

PETRINI, ANGELO D

PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL (LEA)
POWERPLAN

PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT RETIRE

PUCKETT, LANE

PYROGUYS, INC

Rapid Space, LLC

RAY MORGAN CO INC (CA)
REFUSE, INC

ROBERTS, BOBBI JEAN
Robinson, Randy

RUPPCO INC

SAINT MARYS ARTCENTER INC
SBC GLOBAL SERVICES'IN LD
Ses Nevada, LLC

SHERMAN AND HOWARD LLC
SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC
SHOAF, BRIAN ALLEN

SIERRA ENVIRONMENTAL MONITOF

SIERRA PEST CONTROL INC
SILVERLAND USA INC
SOUTHERN GLAZERS WINE & S
SPALLONE, DOMINIC J 1l

SPB UTILITY SERVICES INC
Spence, Daniel

ST CO SHERIFF

ST CO WATER SYSTEM

Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc

Storey County Sheriff
SUN PEAK ENTERPRISES

Superior Hydraulic & Fabrication, In

SUPERIOR POOL PRODUCTS
SUTTON HAGUE LAW CORP

Payment Date
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019
06/21/2019

Packet: APPKT00852-2019-06-21 Payments cw

Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount
Regular 0.00 125.00
Regular 0.00 486.87
Regular 0.00 370.00
Regular 0.00 20,160.59
Regular 0.00 88,000.00
Regular 0.00 4,844.00
Regular 0.00 1,658.99
Regular 0.00 418.50
Regular 0.00 2,800.00
Regular 0.00 1,259.00
Regular 0.00 2,000.00
Regular 0.00 49,46
Regular 0.00 250.00
Regular 0.00 135.00
Regular 0.00 6,303.19
Regular 0.00 1,154.57
Regular 0.00 1,286.25
Regular 0.00 87.25
Regular 0.00 125.00
Regular 0.00 38.50
Regular 0.00 150.00
Regular 0.00 278.04
Regular 0.00 246.50
Regular 0.00 90.00
Regular 0.00 292.50
Regular 0.00 4,762.58
Regular 0.00 4,950.00
Regular 0.00 644.68
Regular 0.00 143.50
Regular 0.00 12.00
Regular 0.00 1,002.10
Regular 0.00 2,189.68
Regular 0.00 150.00
Regular 0.00 7,500.00
Regular 0.00 330.40
Regular 0.00 - 319.13
Regular 0.00 580.66
Regular 0.00 332.06
Regular 0.00 100.00
Regular 0.00 195.50
Regular 0.00 26.00
Regular 0.00 64.42
Regular 0.00 773.86
Regular 0.00 86,844.18
Regular 0.00 235.00
Regular 0.00 6.00
Regular 0.00 253.00
Regular 0.00 55.00
Regular 0.00 1,000.00
Regular 0.00 1,238.10
Regular 0.00 440.75
Regular 0.00 408.00
Regular 0.00 750.00
Regular 0.00 262:75
Regular 0.00 438.06
Regular 0.00 833.07
Regular 0.00 140.25
Regular 0.00 1,622.00
Regular 0.00 106.66
Regular . 0.00 669.10
Regular 0.00 1,130.00

Number
96216
96217
96218
96219
96220
96221
96222
96223
96224
96225
96226
96227
96228
96229
96230
96231
96232
96233
96234
96235
96236
96237
96238
96239
96240
96241
96242
96243
96244
96245
96246
96247
96248
96249
96250
96251
96252
96253
96254
96255
96256
96257
96258
96259
96260
96261
96262
96263
96264
96265
96266
96267
96268
96269
96270
96271
96272
96273
96274
96275
96276



Check Register

Vendor Number
405124
404615
408473
404845
403447
403728
404522
101845
101845
101845
403894
403894
403894
403893
402820
103009
103080
405523
103237
101920
405226
405525
405466
404295

Vendor Name

TERRY, SHIRLEY

THE ANTOS AGENCY

THE DUBE' GROUP INC

THOMAS PETROLEUM LLC
TRI-VENTURES INC

UNITED SITE SERVICES OF NEVADA
UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO

US POSTOFFICE (VC)

US POSTOFFICE (VC)

US POSTOFFICE (VC)

VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR CO, INC.
VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR CO, INC.
VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR CO, INC.
VIRGINIA CITY TOURS INC
WALKER & ASSOCIATES
WASHOE COUNTY SENIOR SERV
WATERS SEPTIC TANK SV DBA
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
WESTERN ENVIRONMENTAL LAB
WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO
WILLAMAN, GABRIEL

Wright, Gary Everett Jr,

Zoll Medical Corporation

WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD

Payment Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Payment Date Payment Type
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Regular
06/21/2019 Bank Draft
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment
Count Count Discount
195 138 0.00
0 0 0.00
0 0 0.00
13 1 0.00
0 0 )
208 139 0.00

200

Packet: APPKT00852-2019-06-21 Payments cw

Discount Amount
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Payment
450,709.98
0.00

0.00
10,286.14
0.00

460,996.12

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner
Comptrolier Date
Treasurer Date

Commissioner

Payment Amount

990.00
5,625.09
4,592.40
4,623.17

52.00
183.84
263.76

76.00

76.00
200.00

11,600.00
2,611.00
28,850.00

521.00
2,425.00
1,889.46

740.00

354.29

50.00

3,528.00
5,540.00

454.00

1,875.00
10,286.14

Number
96277
96278
96279
96280
96281
96282
96283
96284
96285
96286
96287
596288
96289
96290
96291
96292
96293
96294
96295
96296
96297
96298
96299
DFT0000250




Check Register Packet: APPKT00852-2019-06-21 Payments cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 6/2019 460,996.12

" 460,996.12




Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 6/14/2019-6/14/2019

Type  ~ Count ) Amount
Regular Checks 1 267.09
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 0 - _0.00
Total 1 267.09

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 2, 2019 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amend the Agreement for Purchase of Real Property as
approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners on June 18, 2019 specifically in the following
areas:

e Amend last sentence of Section 6 to read “Said escrow shall close within 20 business days after
the approval of this agreement by Divide and the County”.

e Amend first sentence of Section 11 to read “Following the close of escrow, Divide shall have 60
days within which to remove its personal property, equipment and trade fixtures from that portion
of the premises currently used as a membership gym business unless a lease is worked out
between Storey County and Divide Fitness, Inc.

The Section 6 amendment removes the condition that tied close of escrow to completion of NV Energy
providing 3-phase power to another property owned by the sellers as this provision is no longer
applicable. The Section 11 amendment allows for temporary continued use as gym while the both parties
proceed thru the process of establishing a lease. No other terms have changed. “Clean” and “Redlined”
copies reflecting both changes will be provided in the agenda packet.

2. Recommended motion: I, [County Commissioner] move to approve the Amended Agreement for
Purchase of Real Property as approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners on June 18,
2019

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Telephone: 847-0968
4. Staff summary: Please see page 2

5. Supporting materials:
- Amended Draft Agreement for Purchase of Real Property — Clean Version

- Amended Draft Agreement for Purchase of Real Property — Redline Version

6. Fiscal impact: Yes.

Funds Available: Yes Fund: Capital Projects/Infrastructure ____ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: Yes KL District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_tZE_)§pMment Head Department Name:
___ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action: q




ey ey

Approved [] Approved with Modifications
Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.

4. Staff summary: At the June 18" meeting, the Storey County Board of Commissioners approved
submission of an Agreement for Purchase of Real Property located at 800 South C Street in Virginia City,
NV, more commonly referred to as the Divide Building. Since approval, it has been noted there needs to
be 2 changes to terms, hence this request to approve and amended agreement. As specified in the agenda
language, the 2 specific amendments are:

e Amend last sentence of Section 6 to read “Said escrow shall close within 20 business days after
the approval of this agreement by Divide and the County”.

e Amend first sentence of Section 11 to read “Following the close of escrow, Divide shall have 60
days within which to remove its personal property, equipment and trade fixtures from that portion
of the premises currently used as a membership gym business unless a lease is worked out
between Storey County and Divide Fitness, Inc.

The Section 6 amendment removes the condition that tied close of escrow to completion of NV Energy
providing 3-phase power to another property owned by the sellers as this provision is no longer
applicable. The Section 11 amendment allows for temporary continued use as gym while the both parties
proceed thru the process of establishing a lease. No other terms have changed. “Clean” and “Redlined”
copies reflecting both changes will be provided in the agenda packet.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged from the June 18" approval. County Manager Osborne
has been briefed on these changes and recommends approval.



Crean Nen s o

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Divide LLC, (hereafter referred to as Divide
or Seller), and the County of Storey, (hereafter referred to as County or Buyer) and is entered into as of the date
of its execution by the last party signing this Agreement as is hereafter set forth.

WHEREAS, Divide owns real property and an associated commercial building located at 800 South C
Street, Virginia City, Nevada (the Property) and identified as APN 001-042-13; and,

WHEREAS, County is in need of additional space and parking for housing of the Justice’s Court and its
personnel, Storey County Communications and its personnel and Storey County Information Technology and its
personnel; and,

WHEREAS, County has had the real property owned by Divide as required by NRS 244.275; which
appraisal, by Tony Wren, a Nevada certified appraiser, has valued the Property at $1,300,000.00 as of May 15,
2019. The County also appointed Tyler Jourdonnais, a Nevada certified appraiser, to provide further appraisal
information regarding the value of the Property, who reaffirmed his appraisal conducted on May 31, 2018 that
valued the Property at $1,355,000.00. Averaging these appraisals arrives at a figure of $1,327,500.00 as a value
for the Property; and

WHEREAS, County and Divide are willing to purchase and sell the property on the terms hereafter set
forth; and

WHEREAS, Divide desires to retain possession pursuant to a lease from County of a portion of the
Property consisting of commercial property on which the business of a membership gym is currently conducted
by Divide for a period of time after close of escrow for the purpose of continuing the membership gym
business; and,

WHEREAS, NRS 244.2833 excepts from the appraisal requirement for leasing county real property
leases of County property which are less than 25,000 square feet in area; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises herein contained, and
other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed as follows:

1. Subject Property. Divide does hereby agree to sell and County does hereby agree to buy all that
certain real property situate in Virginia City, Nevada and commonly known as 800 South C Street, Virginia
City Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-042-13 which is more particularly described on Exhibit “A”,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full, together with all improvements thereon and
easements appurtenant thereto.

2. Cash Purchase Price. Buyer will pay to Seller One Million Three Hundred Twenty-Seven and

Five hundred dollars ($1,327,500.00).




3. Payment of Purchase Price. The cash purchase price shall be paid in full on the date of the close
of escrow.

4. Additional Consideration In addition to the cash purchase price Buyer will provide additional
consideration as follows:
a. Buyer will dispose of trash situated west of the Property with the exception of materials

retained by Seller which Seller will remove from west of the Property.

b. Seller may retain the two roll up doors on the west side of the building within 30 days of
close of escrow, but agrees to temporarily cover the openings with plywood pending completion of the remodel
of the MX Trophy shop area. Upon completion of the remodel Seller may recover the plywood if desired.

c. Buyer will enclose the south side of the eastern walk way.

d. If Buyer decides to pave a portion of the presently unimproved portion of A Street to the
west of the Property, any base material present in the location where the paving will occur which is unsuitable
as pavement base may be recovered by Seller and moved across C street to Seller’s residence located at 915
South C Street. Seller’s public works crews may assist in the movement of the base material, if available.

€. Seller may remove the Knox box located on the eastern side of the property near entry to MX
Trophy facility and relocate it to a place acceptable to Storey County Community Development. Buyer will
obtain and install its own Knox box for entry to the area utilized by County.

5. Appraisal Cost. County has had an appraisal performed with regard to the property by Ann
Delahay. County will be responsible for all costs incurred in having the appraisal conducted.

6. Escrow. Upon the execution of this Purchase Agreement, the parties shall open an escrow at
Ticor Title Company, in Carson City, Nevada, to consummate the purchase in accordance with the terms and
provisions hereof. The provisions hereof shall constitute joint instructions to the escrow holder; provided,
however, that the parties shall deposit all funds and execute such additional instructions as requested by the
escrow holder in order to complete the sale in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Said escrow shall
close within 20 business days after . the approval of this agreement by Divide and County.

7. Possession. Divide agrees to, and shall, deliver possession of the subject property to County no
later than 10 days after the close of escrow. All of the personal property, equipment and trade fixtures of
Divide must be removed from that portion of the Property to be utilized by County when possession of the
subject property is turned over to County.

8. Title Policy. The Owner’s policy of title insurance shall be a standard coverage form policy of
title insurance to be paid for by County, subject only to the following exceptions: non-delinquent taxes, non-
delinquent assessments, and any restrictions, conditions, reservations, right-of-way or easements of record

9. Proration. All adjustments shall be made as of the date of closing of the escrow opened by this
Agreement, and shall be prorated between Divide and County to that date. The items to be adjusted and
prorated are:




a. Current taxes against the real property computed on a calendar year basis.

b. Unpaid but not delinquent special assessments for local improvements, but all
installments of such assessments due after the closing date shall be assumed and paid by the County.

C. Other prepaid expenses and accrued liabilities which the parties shall agree upon.

Seller will be responsible for the payment of any prepayment penalty which may result from paying off its
current mortgage obligation for the Property, early

10. Inspections. County will accept the Property “as is”. County does not request any inspections of
the Property.

11. Lease. Following the close of escrow, Divide shall have 60 days within which to remove its
personal property, equipment and trade fixtures from that portion of the premises currently used as a
membership gym business, unless a lease is worked out between Storey County and Divide Fitness Inc., The
rough terms of that lease will include the following:

a. Monthly rental payments in the amount of $1500.00 per month with a late fee of 5% if not
paid by the 15" of each month.

b. Utilities consisting of water, sewer, electricity and propane to be provided by County.

c. Divide to provide liability insurance with coverage of $1,000,000.00

d. Divide responsible for real and personal property taxes on the leased premises.

e. Lease term is for up to two years subject to earlier termination by Divide upon 30 days notice
to County.

f. County will provide parking lot maintenance including snow removal.

g. Other terms will be similar to that lease agreement by which County has leased a portion of
Piper’s Opera House to the Corner Bar.

The final provisions of the lease are subject to the requirements of NRS 244.2833 which require the
passage of a resolution by the Board of County Commissioners that the lease of a portion of the Property
is in the best interests of the County without offering the property to the public and for less than fair
market value if applicable. It further requires that the County cause to be published at least once in a
newspaper a notice of the County-owned property up for potential lease and to hold a public hearing on
the proposed lease not less than 10 days after the newspaper publication and not more than 28 days after
the newspaper publication.

If the parties are unable to agree on the terms of the lease, then Divide will be required to vacate
all of the Property and remove all of its personal property, equipment and trade fixtures.

12. Entire Agreement. Divide and County agree that this Agreement contains all of the provisions

of the agreement between Divide and County for County’s purchase of the Property and its improvements.
There are no agreements, warranties or representations, express or implied, except those expressly set forth
herein. Divide shall have no liability for agreements, warranties or representations, except those expressly set




forth herein, and Divide shall not be liable by reason of any agreement, representation or warranty made by any
third party to County. All agreements, representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall apply
as of the closing date and shall survive the closing of this Agreement.

13.  Full Performance. This Agreement and the terms and conditions hereof shall apply to and are
binding upon the heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns of Divide and County.

14. Conflicts of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Nevada.

15.  Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in all of the provisions of this Agreement.

16. Notices. All notices to be given with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing, Each notice
shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and return receipt requested, to the party or parties
to be notified at the address or addresses set forth herein, or at such other address as either party may, from time
to time, designate in writing. Every notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time it shall be deposited
in the United States mail in the manner prescribed herein. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to
preclude personal service of any notice.

The address for County for purposes of this paragraph is:
Storey County

P.O Box 176

Virginia City, NV. 89440

With copy to:

Storey County District Attorney

PO Box 496

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

The address for Divide for purposes of this paragraph is:
Nicholas and/or Jessica Fain

P.O. Box 1128
Virginia City, NV 89440

17. Attorney’s Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto concerning this

Agreement or the property the subject of this Agreement, or the rights or duties of either party relating thereto,




the party prevailing in such litigation shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a
reasonable sum as and for said attorney’s fees in such litigation and costs of court herein.

18.  Time for Acceptance. Divide understands that the consummation of this agreement is
dependent upon the approval of this agreement by the Board of County Commissioners in a duly noticed public
meeting of the Board. Accordingly Divide agrees that authority of the County to accept this agreement will
remain open for a period of thirty days from the date Divide signs this Agreement.

18. Real Estate Agency and Commission County has not utilized the services of a real estate broker
or real estate sales person in connection with this transaction, and County shall not be liable for the payment of
any commisston to any real estate broker or sales person, or to any other person or entity, in connection with
this transaction.

19.  Interpretation and Representation. No provision in this Agreement is to be interpreted either for
or against either Divide or County because that party or that party’s legal representative drafted the provision.
Divide and County acknowledge that Divide and County have each had the opportunity to consult with
independent legal counsel concerning the terms and conditions and consequences of this Agreement prior to
signing the Agreement.

County agrees to Purchase the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
Dated this day of , 2019.

STOREY COUNTY

By Marshall McBride
Chairman Board of County Commissioner of Storey County

Attest:

Storey County Clerk

The undersigned Divide agrees to sell the property on the terms and conditions as stated in this
agreement.

Dated this day of , 2019.

The Divide LLC.,

By:




R

Managing Member




EXHIBIT A
Legal Description

The land referred to herein is situated in the State of Nevada, County of STOREY, described as follows:
THE SURFACE RIGHT IN AND TO

All that real property situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, being a portion of the Northwest Quarter
(NW 4) Section 32, Township 17 North, Range 21 East M.D. M., being the North 65 feet, more or less, of Lot
3 and a portion of Lots 1 and 2, in Block 244, Range A, as shown on the Official Map of

Virginia City, Nevada, filed June 6, 1865, in the office of the County Recorder of Storey County, State of
Nevada, further described in Boundary Line Adjustment, Grant. Bargain, Sale Deed recorded August 23, 2018
as Document No. 128310, and re-recorded August 23, 2018 as Document No 128331, Official Records of
Storey County, State of Nevada more particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at the Northwesterly corner of that Parcel of land shown s APN 001-042-10 for Nicholas &
Jessica Fain on Record of survey Map No. 121843, said point also being the intersection of the Easterly Right-
of-way of “A” Street and the Southerly Right-of-way of Ridge Street:

THENCE along said South line, S 71”15°57” E, a distance of 99.98 feet, to the Northeast corner of said APN
001-42-10 per Record of Survey Map No. 121843:

THENCE along East line of said Parcel, and the West line of “C” Street, S 20’00’51 W, a distance of 192.44
feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE continuing along said West line of “C” Street, $°20°00°51” W, a distance of 150.40 feet:

THENCE continuing along said West line of “C” Street, S 19755°50” , a distance of 88.47 feet, to the Southeast
corner of that Parcel of land shown as APN 001-042-09 for Nicholas & Jessica Fain on Record of Survey Map
NO. 121843;

THENCE leaving said West line, N 73°37°43” W, a distance of 100.25 feet, to the East line of “A” Street;
THENCE along said West line, N 19°57°42” E, a distance of 92.69 feet;

THENCE continuing along said West line, N 20°01°20” E, a distance of 152.69 feet;

THENCE leaving said West line, S 69°54°19” E, a distance of 99.98 feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING.
Reference is further made to Parcel 2A on Record of Survey supporting a Boundary line Adjustment for
Nicholas & Jessica Fain recorded August 22, 2018 as Document No 128309, Official Records of Storey

County, State of Nevada.

APN: 001-042-13




= S pYRYEES \j&RS\QQ

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Divide LLC, (hereafter referred to as Divide
or Seller), and the County of Storey, (hereafter referred to as County or Buyer) and is entered into as of the date
of its execution by the last party signing this Agreement as is hereafter set forth.

WHEREAS, Divide owns real property and an associated commercial building located at 800 South C
Street, Virginia City, Nevada (the Property) and identified as APN 001-042-13; and,

WHEREAS, County is in need of additional space and parking for housing of the Justice’s Court and its
personnel, Storey County Communications and its personnel and Storey County Information Technology and its
personnel; and,

WHEREAS, County has had the real property owned by Divide as required by NRS 244.275; which
appraisal, by Tony Wren, a Nevada certified appraiser, has valued the Property at $1,300,000.00 as of May 15,
2019. The County also appointed Tyler Jourdonnais, a Nevada certified appraiser, to provide further appraisal
information regarding the value of the Property, who reaffirmed his appraisal conducted on May 31, 2018 that
valued the Property at $1,355,000.00. Averaging these appraisals arrives at a figure of $1,327,500.00 as a value
for the Property; and

WHEREAS, County and Divide are willing to purchase and sell the property on the terms hereafter set
forth; and

WHEREAS, Divide desires to retain possession pursuant to a lease from County of a portion of the
Property consisting of commercial property on which the business of a membership gym is currently conducted
by Divide for a period of time after close of escrow for the purpose of continuing the membership gym
business; and,

WHEREAS, NRS 244.2833 excepts from the appraisal requirement for leasing county real property
leases of County property which are less than 25,000 square feet in area; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises herein contained, and
other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed as follows:

1. Subject Property. Divide does hereby agree to sell and County does hereby agree to buy all that
certain real property situate in Virginia City, Nevada and commonly known as 800 South C Street, Virginia
City Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-042-13 which is more particularly described on Exhibit “A”,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full, together with all improvements thereon and
easements appurtenant thereto.

2. Cash Purchase Price. Buyer will pay to Seller One Million Three Hundred Twenty-Seven and
Five hundred dollars ($1,327,500.00).




3. Payment of Purchase Price. The cash purchase price shall be paid in full on the date of the close

of escrow.

4. Additional Consideration In addition to the cash purchase price Buyer will provide additional
consideration as follows:
a. Buyer will dispose of trash situated west of the Property with the exception of materials

retained by Seller which Seller will remove from west of the Property.

b. Seller may retain the two roll up doors on the west side of the building within 30 days of
close of escrow, but agrees to temporarily cover the openings with plywood pending completion of the remodel
of the MX Trophy shop area. Upon completion of the remodel Seller may recover the plywood if desired.

c. Buyer will enclose the south side of the eastern walk way.

d. If Buyer decides to pave a portion of the presently unimproved portion of A Street to the
west of the Property, any base material present in the location where the paving will occur which is unsuitable
as pavement base may be recovered by Seller and moved across C street to Seller’s residence located at 915
South C Street. Seller’s public works crews may assist in the movement of the base material, if available.

e. Seller may remove the Knox box located on the eastern side of the property near entry to MX
Trophy facility and relocate it to a place acceptable to Storey County Community Development. Buyer will
obtain and install its own Knox box for entry to the area utilized by County.

5. Appraisal Cost. County has had an appraisal performed with regard to the property by Ann
Delahay. County will be responsible for all costs incurred in having the appraisal conducted.

6. Escrow. Upon the execution of this Purchase Agreement, the parties shall open an escrow at
Ticor Title Company, in Carson City, Nevada, to consummate the purchase in accordance with the terms and
provisions hereof. The provisions hereof shall constitute joint instructions to the escrow holder; provided,
however, that the parties shall deposit all funds and execute such additional instructions as requested by the
escrow holder in order to complete the sale in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Said escrow shall
close within 6 20 business days after notbication that NV Enerey has completed the 3 phase power
istalatton to the premses located-at 45 South C-Street. the approval of this agreement by Divide and County.

7. Possession. Divide agrees to, and shall, deliver possession of the subject property to County no
later than 10 days after the close of escrow. All of the personal property, equipment and trade fixtures of
Divide must be removed from that portion of the Property to be utilized by County when possession of the
subject property is turned over to County.

8. Title Policy. The Owner’s policy of title insurance shall be a standard coverage form policy of
title insurance to be paid for by County, subject only to the following exceptions: non-delinquent taxes, non-
delinquent assessments, and any restrictions, conditions, reservations, right-of-way or easements of record

9. Proration. All adjustments shall be made as of the date of closing of the escrow opened by this
Agreement, and shall be prorated between Divide and County to that date. The items to be adjusted and
prorated are:




a. Current taxes against the real property computed on a calendar year basis.

b. Unpaid but not delinquent special assessments for local improvements, but all
installments of such assessments due after the closing date shall be assumed and paid by the County.

C. Other prepaid expenses and accrued liabilities which the parties shall agree upon.

Seller will be responsible for the payment of any prepayment penalty which may result from paying off its
current mortgage obligation for the Property, early

10. Inspections. County will accept the Property “as is”. County does not request any inspections of
the Property.

11. Lease. Following the close of escrow, Divide shall have 60 days within which to remove its
membership gyim business, unless fetatn possossion of thatportion-of the Rroperty presenthy tised asa
metbership gvim-bustness o lease 1s worked out between Storey County and Divide Fitness Inc..pursuant toa
tease to be worked out between County and Divide: The rough terms of that lease will include the following:

a. Monthly rental payments in the amount of $1500.00 per month with a late fee of 5% if not

paid by the 15" of each month.

Utilities consisting of water, sewer, electricity and propane to be provided by County.

Divide to provide liability insurance with coverage of $1,000,000.00

Divide responsible for real and personal property taxes on the leased premises.

Lease term is for up to two years subject to earlier termination by Divide upon 30 days notice

to County.

County will provide parking lot maintenance including snow removal.

g. Other terms will be similar to that lease agreement by which County has leased a portion of
Piper’s Opera House to the Comer Bar.

ope g

e

The final provisions of the lease are subject to the requirements of NRS 244.2833 which require the
passage of a resolution by the Board of County Commissioners that the lease of a portion of the Property
is in the best interests of the County without offering the property to the public and for less than fair
market value if applicable. It further requires that the County cause to be published at least once in a
newspaper a notice of the County-owned property up for potential lease and to hold a public hearing on
the proposed lease not less than 10 days after the newspaper publication and not more than 28 days after
the newspaper publication.

If the parties are unable to agree on the terms of the lease, then Divide will be required to vacate
all of the Property and remove all of its personal property, equipment and trade fixtures.




12. Entire Agreement. Divide and County agree that this Agreement contains all of the provisions
of the agreement between Divide and County for County’s purchase of the Property and its improvements.
There are no agreements, warranties or representations, express or implied, except those expressly set forth
herein. Divide shall have no liability for agreements, warranties or representations, except those expressly set
forth herein, and Divide shall not be liable by reason of any agreement, representation or warranty made by any
third party to County. All agreements, representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall apply
as of the closing date and shall survive the closing of this Agreement.

13. Full Performance. This Agreement and the terms and conditions hereof shall apply to and are
binding upon the heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns of Divide and County.

14. Conflicts of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Nevada.

15.  Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in all of the provisions of this Agreement.

16.  Notices. All notices to be given with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing. Each notice
shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and return receipt requested, to the party or parties
to be notified at the address or addresses set forth herein, or at such other address as either party may, from time
to time, designate in writing. Every notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time it shall be deposited
in the United States mail in the manner prescribed herein. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to
preclude personal service of any notice.

The address for County for purposes of this paragraph is:
Storey County

P.O Box 176

Virginia City, NV. 89440

With copy to:

Storey County District Attorney

PO Box 496

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

The address for Divide for purposes of this paragraph is:
Nicholas and/or Jessica Fain

P.O. Box 1128
Virginia City, NV 89440




17.  Attorney’s Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto concerning this

Agreement or the property the subject of this Agreement, or the rights or duties of either party relating thereto,
the party prevailing in such litigation shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a
reasonable sum as and for said attorney’s fees in such litigation and costs of court herein.

18.  Time for Acceptance. Divide understands that the consummation of this agreement is
dependent upon the approval of this agreement by the Board of County Commissioners in a duly noticed public
meeting of the Board. Accordingly Divide agrees that authority of the County to accept this agreement will
remain open for a period of thirty days from the date Divide signs this Agreement.

18. Real Estate Agency and Commission County has not utilized the services of a real estate broker
or real estate sales person in connection with this transaction, and County shall not be liable for the payment of
any commission to any real estate broker or sales person, or to any other person or entity, in connection with
this transaction.

19. Interpretation and Representation. No provision in this Agreement is to be interpreted either for
or against either Divide or County because that party or that party’s legal representative drafted the provision.
Divide and County acknowledge that Divide and County have each had the opportunity to consult with
independent legal counsel concerning the terms and conditions and consequences of this Agreement prior to
signing the Agreement.

County agrees to Purchase the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
Dated this day of , 2019.

STOREY COUNTY

By Marshall McBride
Chairman Board of County Commissioner of Storey County

Attest:

Storey County Clerk

The undersigned Divide agrees to sell the property on the terms and conditions as stated in this
agreement.

Dated this day of ,2019.




The Divide LLC.

By:

Managing Member




EXHIBIT A

Legal Description

The land referred to herein is situated in the State of Nevada, County of STOREY, described as follows:
THE SURFACE RIGHT IN AND TO

All that real property situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, being a portion of the Northwest Quarter
(NW ) Section 32, Township 17 North, Range 21 East M.D. M., being the North 65 feet, more or less, of Lot
3 and a portion of Lots 1 and 2, in Block 244, Range A, as shown on the Official Map of

Virginia City, Nevada, filed June 6, 1865, in the office of the County Recorder of Storey County, State of
Nevada, further described in Boundary Line Adjustment, Grant. Bargain, Sale Deed recorded August 23, 2018
as Document No. 128310, and re-recorded August 23, 2018 as Document No 128331, Official Records of
Storey County, State of Nevada more particularly described as follows:

COMMENCING at the Northwesterly corner of that Parcel of land shown s APN 001-042-10 for Nicholas &
Jessica Fain on Record of survey Map No. 121843, said point also being the intersection of the Easterly Right-
of-way of “A” Street and the Southerly Right-of-way of Ridge Street:

THENCE along said South line, S 71”1557 E, a distance of 99.98 feet, to the Northeast corner of said APN
001-42-10 per Record of Survey Map No. 121843:

THENCE along East line of said Parcel, and the West line of “C” Street, S 20°00°51 W, a distance of 192.44
feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE continuing along said West line of “C” Street, $°20°00°51” W, a distance of 150.40 feet:

THENCE continuing along said West line of “C” Street, S 1955’50, a distance of 88.47 feet, to the Southeast
corner of that Parcel of land shown as APN 001-042-09 for Nicholas & Jessica Fain on Record of Survey Map
NO. 121843;

THENCE leaving said West line, N 73°37°43” W, a distance of 100.25 feet, to the East line of “A” Street;
THENCE along said West line, N 19°57°42” E, a distance of 92.69 feet;

THENCE continuing along said West line, N 20°01°20” E, a distance of 152.69 feet;

THENCE leaving said West line, S 69°54°19 E, a distance of 99.98 feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING.
Reference is further made to Parcel 2A on Record of Survey supporting a Boundary line Adjustment for

Nicholas & Jessica Fain recorded August 22, 2018 as Document No 128309, Official Records of Storey
County, State of Nevada.

APN: 001-042-13




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 2, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve and authorize the Chairman of the Storey
County Board of Commissioners to execute a contract between Storey County and PAW Professional
Services, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company for professional consulting services. Services would
be structured as an independent contractor with the managing member, Pat Whitten, responsible for all
expenses, scheduling, etc. Contractor shall provide services at the request of the County Manager.
Storey County shall pay for services provided at an hourly rate of $165.00. (This item was continued
from the June 18, 2019 Commission meeting.)

2. Recommended motion: I [Commissioner] move to approve and authorize the Chairman of the Storey
County Board of Commissioners to execute a contract between Storey County and PAW
Professional Services, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company for professional consulting
services.

3. Prepared by: Marshall McBride — Chairman, Storey County Board of Commissioners

Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: See Page 2

5. Supporting materials: Proposed Contract

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Yes Fund: General Admin Professional Services  Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes KL District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
: Z _jiepartment Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
[ S T—

10




4. Staff summary: With the transition of County Management occuring from Pat Whitten’s retirement,
there are still a number of projects in process that have been ongoing for some time. I have asked Pat if
he would consider working as an hourly consultant to finish these projects and provide assistance when
requested, by the County Manager. Pat has agreed and proceeded to establish his private business
structure, known as PAW Professional Services, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (Consultant)
for professional consulting services. While the attached draft Contract for Services contains standard
terms and conditions relative to most independent contractors, Pat has requested that the following
statement of his understanding of the limitations of his contract work in general terms be included in the
record:
Consultant will work on various projects under the sole discretion of County Manager Austin
Osborne. He does so with the stated understanding that he has zero authority to commit, approve
or otherwise bind the County in any manner. Consultant’s services are limited to consulting only
and may or may not be requested to primarily capitalize on his past knowledge and participation
in various projects for the County's best benefit. Projects will, undoubtedly drop off as the
subject projects are completed, abandoned or assigned internally. Some projects may be added
at the sole discretion of the County Manager but subject to PAW Professional Services, LLC's
acceptance. He wishes to make it abundantly clear that there is only one County Manager, that
being Austin Osborne.
Consultant also wishes to clarify on the record, that he does not yet have a Storey County
Business License nor Liability Insurance. He intends to initiate both those steps immediately
after potential approval. He will not commence work under the contract until all requirements
are met.
In my opinion, utilization of these service levels will be much the same as how our District Attorney
utilizes Bob Morris as Outside Special Counsel as well as other professional consultants, different only
in that he won’t be providing legal services but rather technical and logistical services. Based on Pat’s
institutional and practical knowledge gained during his 14+ years on the job, I believe it to be in the best
interests of the County to contract with PAW Professional Services, LLC and to utilize their services as
we determine we need them. Accordingly, as Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners, I
recommend approval.




o

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
A Contract between Storey County
and

PAW Professional Services, LLC,
a Nevada limited liability company

Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter “County”),
from time to time requires the services of independent contractors; and

The services of PAW Professional Services, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company
(hereafter “Contractor”) specified in this agreement are both necessary and desirable and in the
best interests of Storey County and Contractor; and

Contractor represents that it is duly qualified, equipped, staffed, ready, willing and able to
perform and render the services described in this agreement.

In consideration of the mutual agreements made in this agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1. TERM OF CONTRACT. This contract will not become effective until and unless
approved by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners, but, if approved, the effective
date of this contract shall be effective as of July 2, 2019 and shall be effective until July 1, 2021
unless sooner terminated as provided by Paragraph 6 of this agreement.

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The parties agree that Contractor will have the
status of an independent contractor. Contractor is not a County employee; and

There will be no:

a. Withholding of income taxes by the County;

b. Industrial insurance coverage provided by the County;

c. Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to employees of

the County;

d. Participation or contributions by either the independent contractor or the County
to the public employees’ retirement system;

e. Accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave;

f. Unemployment compensation coverage provided by the County if the

requirements of NRS 612.085 for independent contractors are met.

3. RIGHTS. Contractor and County agree to the following rights consistent with an
independent contractor relationship:

a. Contractor has the right to perform services for others during the term of this
Agreement;




b. Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method
by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed;

¢. Contractor shall not be assigned a work location on County premises but may
schedule the use of a meeting room for meetings with the consent of the County
Manager’s office;

d. Contractor, at Contractor’s sole expense, will furnish all equipment and materials
used to provide the services required by this Agreement;

e. Contractor, at Contractor’s sole expense, has the right to hire assistants as
subcontractors, or to use Contractor’s employees to provide the services required by
this Agreement;

f.  Contractor or Contractor’s employees or contract personnel shall perform the
services required by this Agreement, and Contractor agrees to the faithful
performance and delivery of described services in accordance with the time frames
contained herein;

g. County shall not hire, supervise or pay any assistants to help Contractor;

h. Neither Contractor nor contractor’s employees or contract personnel shall receive
any training from County in the skills necessary to perform the services required by
this Agreement;and

i. County shall not require Contractor or Contractor’s employees or contract
personnel to devote full time to performing the services required by this Agreement,

Contractor further certifies the following:

a. Contractor is licensed by the State of Nevada and Storey County to provide similar
services to other clients/customers; and

b. Contractor understands that it is solely responsible to pay any federal and state
taxes and/or any social security or related payments applicable to money received for
services provided under the terms of this contract. Contractor understands that an
IRS Form 1099 will be filed by County for all payments County makes to Contractor.

County further certifies the following:

a. The County will not interfere with Contractor’s principal’s ability to participate in
any group insurance and/or other PERS retirement benefits as a former Storey
County employee.

4. SERVICES To BE PERFORMED. The parties agree that the intended scope of services
to be performed is as follows: Contractor will work on specific projects as directed by the
County and authorized by the County Manager. Each project will be assigned to Contractor via
email. There is no guarantee of a specific amount of work or any work, being assigned to
Contractor. The County Manager may assign one or more projects, or no projects, to Contractor,
all within the sole discretion of the County Manager. Contractor understands the budget
limitation on each project is $5,000.00 in total billing, and that Contractor may not exceed that
budget limit on a particular project unless and until the County Manager receives the approval of




the Board of County Commissioners for additional budget authority.

5. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. Storey County shall pay Contractor at an hourly rate of
$165.00 per hour for all services provided as authorized by this Agreement.

6. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. This contract may be terminated without cause by
either party. Termination is effective upon receipt of a written notice of termination. Notice of
Termination delivered to Contractor may be served upon the registered agent of Contractor as
identified on the Nevada Secretary of State’s website for business entities by certified mail,
return receipt requested delivered to the address of the registered agent or by personal service
upon Pat Whitten, managing member of Contractor. Notice of Termination delivered to County
may be provided by certified mail return receipt requested to Storey County, c/o Storey County
Manager, P.O. Box 176 Virginia City, NV 89440. Upon receipt of a notice of termination,
Contractor shall immediately cease all work on behalf of County.

7. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT. This contract will be construed and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of Nevada.

8. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. Contractor must fully and completely
comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations, orders, or requirements of
any sort in carrying out the obligations of this contract, including, but not limited to, all federal,
state, and local accounting procedures and requirements and all immigration and naturalization
laws.

9. ASSIGNMENT. Contractor may not assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations
or duties under this contract without the prior written consent of the County, except as
specifically provided in Paragraph 3 hereinabove.

10. COUNTY INSPECTION. The books, records, documents and accounting procedures
and practices of Contractor related to this contract will be subject to inspection, examination and
audit by the County, including, but not limited to, the contracting agency, the County Manager,
the District Attorney, and, if applicable, the Comptroller General of the United States or the
United States Department of Agriculture, Office of Rural Development, or any authorized
representative of those entities.

11. DISPOSITION OF CONTRACT MATERIALS. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives or other documents, data, drawings or other materials prepared by or supplied to
Contractor in the performance of its obligations under this contract will be the exclusive property
of the County and all materials must be remitted and delivered, at Contractor's expense, by
Contractor to the County upon completion, termination or cancellation of this contract.
Alternatively, if the County provides its written approval to Contractor, any books, reports,
studies, photographs, negatives or other documents, data, drawings or other materials prepared
by or supplied to Contractor in the performance of its obligations under this contract must be
retained by Contractor for a minimum of six years after final payment is made and all other
pending matters are closed. If, at any time during the retention period, the County, in writing,
requests any or all of the materials, then Contractor must promptly remit and deliver the




materials, at Contractor's expense, to the County. Contractor will not use, willingly allow or
cause to have the materials used for any purpose other than the performance of Contractor's
obligations under this contract without the prior written consent of the County.

12. PuBLIC RECORDS LAW. Contractor expressly agrees that all documents submitted,
filed, or deposited with the County by Contractor, unless designated as confidential by a specific
statue of the State of Nevada, or because of a balancing of interests, will be treated as public
records pursuant to NRS Chapter 239 and must be available for inspection and copying by any
Person, as defined in NRS 0.039, or any governmental entity. To the extent that Contractor
utilizes a personal cell-phone to perform services pursuant to this agreement, Contractor agrees
to maintain and provide records of those activities to County upon request.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the
County, its employees, officers and agents from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions
or proceedings, including without limitation, reasonable attorney fees, that are caused by the
negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of the Contractor or its
employees or agents in the performance of this contract. County agrees to defend, indemnify
and hold harmless the Contractor, its employees, officers and agents from any liabilities,
damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including without limitation, reasonable
attorney fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional
misconduct of the County or its employees or agents.

14. INSURANCE Contractor will carry and maintain in effect during the performance of
services under this contract, general liability insurance, and such other insurance coverage
normally carried by Contractor insuring against the injury, loss, or damage to persons and
property caused by Contractor's activities. Contractor must maintain in effect at all times during
the performance under this contract all specified insurance coverage with insurers and forms of
policy satisfactory to the County, acceptance of which will not be unreasonably withheld.

Contractor will provide the County with certificates of insurance for coverage listed
below and endorsements affecting coverage required by the contract within 20 calendar days
after the notice to proceed is issued by the County. The certificates and endorsements for each
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by the insurer and who is licensed by
the State of Nevada.

(1) Each insurance company's rating as shown in the latest Best's Key rating guide must

be fully disclosed and entered on the required certificate of insurance. The adequacy of

the rating and financial health of each insurance company providing coverage, is subject
to the approval of the County.

(2) Contractor's insurance will be primary as respects the County and its officers and

employees.

(3) The parties agree that Contractor or its insurance carrier must provide the County with

30 days advance notice of cancellation of the policies.

(4) All deductibles and self-insured retentions must be fully disclosed in the certificates




of insurance.

(5) If aggregate limits of less than $2,000,000 are imposed on bodily injury and property
damage, the Contractor must maintain umbrella liability insurance of at least $1,000,000.
All aggregates must be fully disclosed on the required certificate of insurance.

(6) Contractor must obtain and maintain, for the duration of this contract, general liability
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work under this contract by Contractor
or its agents, representatives, or employees.

(7) General liability coverage will be on a "per occurrence” basis only and not "claims
made." The coverage must be provided either on a Commercial General Liability Form
A or a Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability form. Policies must include, but
need not be limited to, coverage for bodily injury, personal injury, broad form property
damage, premises operations, severability of interest, products and completed operations,
contractual and independent contractors. General liability insurance policies must be
endorsed to include the County as an additional insured. Subject to paragraph 6 of this
section, Contractor must maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit
per occurrence for bodily injury (including death), personal injury, and property damages.
(8) If contractor fails to maintain any of the required insurance coverage, then the County
will have the option to declare Contractor in breach and terminate the contract, or the
County may purchase replacement insurance or pay the premiums that are due on
existing policies in order that the required coverage is maintained. Contractor is
responsible for any payments made by the County to obtain or maintain such insurance,
and the County may collect the same from Contractor or deduct the amount paid from
any sums due Contractor under this contract.

(9) The specified insurance requirements do not relieve Contractor of its responsibility
or limit the amount of its liability to the County or other persons, and Contractor is
encouraged to purchase such additional insurance as it deems necessary.

(10) Contractor is responsible for and required to remedy all damage or loss to any
property, including property of the County, caused in whole or in part by Contractor or
anyone employed, directed, or supervised by Contractor.

15. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE. Contractor further agrees, as a precondition to the
performance of any work under this contract and as a precondition to any obligation of the
County to make any payment under this contract, to provide the County with a work certificate
or a certificate issued by a qualified insurer in accordance with NRS 616B.627. Contractor also
agrees, prior to commencing any work under the contract, to complete and to provide the
following written request to a qualified insurer:

PAW Professional Services LLC has entered into a contract with Storey County to
perform work from the date of approval of this contract by the Board of Storey County
Commissioners and requests that the insurer provide to Storey County: 1) a certificate of
coverage issued pursuant to NRS 616B.627 and 2) notice of any lapse in coverage or
nonpayment of coverage that the contractor is required to maintain. The certificate and
notice should be mailed to:




Storey County Human Resources Director
Post Office Box 176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Contractor agrees to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the
entire term of the contract. If Contractor does not maintain coverage throughout the entire term
of the contract under such conditions, Contractor agrees that County may, at any time the
coverage is not maintained by Contractor, order the Contractor to stop work, suspend the
contract, or terminate the contract. For each six-month period this contract is in effect,
Contractor agrees, prior to the expiration of the six-month period, to provide another written
request to a qualified insurer for the provision of a certificate and notice of lapse in or
nonpayment of coverage. If Contractor does not make the request or does not provide the
certificate before the expiration of the six-month period, Contractor agrees that County may
order Contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or terminate the contract.

Contractor may, in lieu of furnishing a certificate of an insurer, provide an affidavit
indicating that he is a sole proprietor and that:

1. In accordance with the provisions of NRS 616B.659, has not elected to be
included within the terms, conditions and provisions of chapters 616A to 616D,
inclusive, of NRS; and

2. Is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions.

16. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT. This contract constitutes the entire contract between
the parties and may only be modified by a written amendment signed by the parties and approved
by the Board of County Commissioners.

17. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any
particular breach of the Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not
operate as a waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

18. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be
unenforceable by a court of law or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision
did not exist and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other
provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable.

19. COUNTERPARTS AND FACSIMILE SIGNATURES. This Agreement may
be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same
agreement and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each
party and delivered to the other party, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same
counterpart. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile signatures.




20. NO INTERPRETATION AGAINST DRAFTER. Each party recognizes that
this Agreement is a legally binding contract and acknowledges that such party has had the
opportunity to consult with legal counsel of choice. In any construction of the terms of this
Agreement, the same shall not be construed against either party on the basis of that party being
the drafter of such terms.

The Parties have executed this agreement as of the dates written below and intend to be
legally bound by it.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS PAW PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LLC,
OF STOREY COUNTY A NEVADA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

By By
Marshall McBride, Chairman (Date) Pat Whitten, Manager (Date)

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens,
County Clerk

Approved as to form by:

Deputy District Attorney




Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Board of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners’ Meeting. (Items received after the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Jul , 2019
Date of Meeting: = Date Request Submitted: May—c [\ ?0/ 201%

/4
Agenda Item Requested: _ A/bXIO vl L\/Cf&é" FPresea-tc+ion

This item is intended for: MDiscussion Only [] Discussion and Action (at the Board’s discretion)

[[] Supporting documentation is attached ENO supporting documentation is necessary

Requested by: S Ch C'(PACVf"

(please print name clearly)

Address: /Ve,l/ao(“ D!P""me"/' ,4., ﬂ-rr‘lc«-/-f-ul’( ‘fQSJ‘z/J‘t" - J'}»Cr'/tf
Phone: % 33 C S657 Email (optional): Jq e PI\CV"f"‘D Qq,«-, V. got-

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

’s Of
Storey County Clerk’s Office Storey County Clerk’s Office

PO Drawer D
e e 775) 847-0921
Virginia City NV 89440 (775)

— L. Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope = - - - - - —>

For Office Use Only
Date Request Received: Received: [ ] InPerson [ ] Via FAX By:
[] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages | Meeting date of this item:

[] Item Approved for Agenda by: , Date;

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email: *

873 ¢

|




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: Possible approval of design fee proposals from
Dube Architecture Group and Farr West Engineering for architecture, HVAC, electrical, structural,
and civil design services relating to the proposed tenant improvement work at 800 South C Street,
Virginia City NV for the provision of county facilities to include Justice Court.

2. Recommended motion: I, commissioner [...], move to approve the design fee proposals
from Dube Architecture Group and Farr West Engineering for architecture, HVAC,
electrical, structural and civil design services relating to the proposed tenant improvement at
800 South C Street for the provision of county facilities to include Justice Court.

3. Prepared by: Mike Northan
4. Department: Public Works Telephone: (775) 335 6991

5. Staff summary: The proposals have been reviewed by staff and are appropriate to the
scope of services required for this project.

6. Supporting materials: See attached proposals.

7. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
1 Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

A ]

Agenda Item No. I 2_

Page 1 of 1



This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 9 pages, referred to in
and part of the Agreement between Owner and
Engineer for Professional Services dated September 1,
2009.

Task Order

Task Order Number: 30
Date; June 11, 2019
Title: Storey County Offices Project

Project Description: Provide professional surveying and engineering services for the site development
related to the proposed Storey County Offices Project located at 800 South C Street in Storey County,
Nevada. The building is an existing 10,800 square foot metal building constructed in 2016. The County
proposes to remodel the existing building interior and construct tenant improvements to house the justice
court, IT and dispatch. The site improvements will be limited to:

e Parking expansion in rear of building with paving. Retaining wall may be necessary depending on
parking layout.

¢ Vehicle access, including fire truck, around south side of building with new commercial approach
to C Street (NDOT right-of-way).

o Improve drainage along south side of building.
e Possible parking addition on southeast side of building if permissible by NDOT.

The Master Services Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the
parties.

PART 1 - SERVICES
Task 1 - Project Management

Objective

To plan, organize, direct, control, and communicate all relevant activities set forth in this Scope of Work
within the approved budget and schedule.

Approach

Farr West will routinely review project progress and communicate project status on a regular basis.
Communication will be through email and telephone, and with monthly project coordination meetings
with the Client and Farr West staff. This task will include the following activities:

e Project administration includes scheduling maintenance, cost control, monthly invoicing, filing,
resource allocation, subconsultant management, and routine communications.

e Conducting a project kick-off meeting with Farr West and Client staff.

e Team coordination, including conference calls and internal meetings.

e Monitoring changes to the scope, budget, or schedule and developing change management
strategies with Client.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

Pagelof 6
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




e Project schedule.
e Monthly status reports.

Assumptions

The following assumptions apply:
¢ Monthly reports will be provided with timely invoices.

e Project-related issues will be identified, communicated, and resolved.
Task 2 - Surveying @d Mapping
Objective
To develop a topographic and boundary map of the parcel and roadway to support the design and
permitting effort.

Approach _
This task will include the following activities:

o Farr West will provide a topographic survey for the project site. One- Foot Contour intervals will be
provided at 17 =40’.

o Farr West will provide a record data boundary survey of the site. We will locate key monuments,
compare record maps, deeds, and title documentation for the subject and adjacent properties. We
will analyze calculated and measured distances and compare them to record data and translate
record measurement to existing monumentation.

e Farr West will locate existing features via conventional methods. This will include the existing
building, edge of pavement surrounding the building and for the adjacent roadway, surface utilities,
detached structures, signage and other ground features. A digital terrain model will created in
AutoCAD Civil 3D for use in engineering design.

¢ The horizontal and vertical control shall be based upon NAD 83 (Horizontal), and the North
American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88-Vertical).

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:
e Topographic data provided at 1”=40" in CAD format.
s Boundary data provided in CAD format.

Task 3 — Site Development Plans

Objective

To develop a civil site development plan set with related notes and details that meets all applicable codes
and standards. The sheet set will include the following:

Page 2 of 6
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Cover Sheet

General Notes, Legend and Material Specifications
Civil Site Plan

Site Grading Plan

Erosion and Sediment Control Plan

Details

Approach
This task will include the following activities:

Prepare cover sheet, general notes & symbols, material specifications and details related to site
improvement work. Specifications will be shown on plans and no specification book is proposed.

Utilizing the site plan created from the topographic survey, we will review and modify the plan as
necessary to meet all local codes and standards. The plan modification will consider parking, fire
access, snow removal and other needs identified by the client.

Identify locations for curbs, valley gutters and other concrete related improvements.

Identify parking and related striping, including ADA accessible stalls if necessary. The ADA
accessible route from the parking stalls to the building will be identified and improvements will
be noted as required.

Establish elevations for curbs, valley gutters, pavement and other proposed features.
Show locations and details for drainage swales/ditches.
If required, locations and elevations for retaining wall structures will be shown.

Utilizing the drainage patterns established on the Civil Grading Plan, show the locations of BMPs
on the subject property to mitigate erosion due to runoff.

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

Site Development Plans (30%, 60% and Final)

Assumptions

The following assumptions apply:

.

No utility design is required.

The design of retaining wall structures, if required, is not included. Farr West Engineering can
provide an additional fee to design these structures if needed.

Notice of Intent through NDEP and SWPPP will be completed by the Contractor.

The erosion and sediment control plan shall be used as guidance only. The Contractor will be
responsible for preparing and maintaining a SWPPP.

No specification book will be prepared.

Page3 of 6
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Task 4 — Site Drainage Study

Objective
To identify drainage patterns and peak flows generated from the site. Compile the data into a dramage study
that meets Storey County and NDOT standards.

Approach

This task will include the following activities:
e Evaluate and document the existing drainage patterns of the site.
e Develop a proposed master drainage concept that maintains the existing drainage patterns.
e Calculate the existing and proposed hydrology for the storm events required by the governing

agencies.
¢ Prepare a drainage report that d1scuss the existing conditions, proposed conditions, hydrology and
hydraulics for the site.
Deliverables

The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

e Drainage report with related attachments and calculations.
Assumptions
The following assumptions apply:

e On-site detention is not required.

. o There appears to be inadequate drainage facilities downstream of the subject property. It is assumed
that no analysis or improvements will be required to address this issue. If additional studies/analysis
is required, Farr West Engineering can provide an additional fee to complete the analysis if
needed.

- Task 5 — Permitting Support

Objective

To assist the client with the necessary permitting required for site development.
Approach

This task will include the following activities:

e Coordinate with and submit plans and related documents to the Storey County Building
Department for site improvements.

e Coordinate with and submit plans and related documents to the Storey County Fire Department
for site improvements.

e Coordinate with and submit plans and related documents to the Nevada Department of
Transportation for encroachment into SR 342.

Page4 of 6
Exhibit A —Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Deliverables
The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

e Permits and approvals from Storey County and NDOT.
Assumptions
The following assumptions apply:

e Permit and applications fees will be provided by the client.

o The Contractor will apply for and obtain the Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Nevada
Division of Environmental Protection,

e The architect or owner will coordinate permitting for the building, including the service
application to NV Energy and other utilities.

Task 6 — Bidding Support

Objective
To assist the client with the bidding process.
Approach
This task will include the following activities:
e Answer technical questions and respond to questions raised by bidders during the bidding period.

All questions regarding legal aspects of the construction documents will be referred directly to
Storey County. In addition, all questions and responses will be documented and provided to

Storey County.
e Ifrequired, Farr West will prepare addenda and provide to the County in electronic PDF format.

e Farr West will attend bid opening if required, and at the County’s request, review bids that were
received for irregularities, and provide a recommendation for award to Storey County.

Deliverabies
The following deliverables will be submitted under this task:

¢ Responses to questions raised to bidders.

o Addenda if reqiired.
Assumptions
The following assumptions apply:

e The architect or client will coordinate the bidding process and maintain the planholders list.

PART 2 - COMPENSATION

Storey County shall pay Farr West on a time and materials basis, including travel, not to exceed Twenty-five
thousand four hundred Dollars ($25,400.00). Hourly rates and other expenses shall be in accordance with

Page 5.0f6
Exhibit A — Task Order
Master Services Agreement




Owner: Storey County

By:

Exhibit C of the Master Services Agreement (Standard Hourly Rates). A breakdown of the individual task

budgets is as follows:
Task 1 Project Management $2,900
Task2 | Surveying and Mapping $6,300
Task 3 Site Development Plans $9,400
Task4 | Site Drainage Study $3,200
Task5 | Permitting Support $2,200
Task 6 | Bidding Support $1,400
TOTAL: $25,400

PART 3 -SCHEDULE

The following is a proposed schedule to be used as a general guideline only and is based on an assumed
Notice to Proceed date of July 1, 2019.

Surveying and Mapping Completion: ~ July 17, 2019

30% Site Development Plans:

August 2, 2019

60% Site Development Plans: August 16, 2019 (Assumes comments 